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The Botswana Institute for Development Policy Analysis (BIDPA) is 
a non-governmental research organization established by a deed of 
trust. The two key areas of BIDPA’s mandate are development policy 
analysis and capacity building. 

Its aim is to promote policy analysis through research, capacity 
building, assisting organizations or individuals where appro-
priate, monitoring the country’s economic performance and 
disseminating policy research results. 

http://www.bidpa.bw/ 
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A critical objective of the Strategic Plan 

is to promote evidence-based policy 

making in Botswana through provision of 

policy research and analysis and related 

capacity building. It further emphasises 

alignment of the Institute’s research 

programs with national and regional 

development agendas to ensure 

relevance and impact on public policy.  

BIDPA undertook a number of research 

projects on behalf of the Government 

of Botswana, which contribute 

significantly to policy formulation in the 

country.  Specific details pertaining 

to the projects is enunciated in this 

report.  The Institute also completed a 

number of independent studies, which 

will contribute to policy dialogue in 

the country. Through its Research Sub-

Committee, the BIDPA Board of Trustees 

will continue to guide the research 

agenda of the Institute to ensure that it 

is aligned to the changing needs of the 

economy of Botswana, as well as the 

national priorities stipulated in National 

Development Plan 11 and Vision 2036. 

Despite its successes, BIDPA faced 

significant challenges, which have 

impeded its operations, key amongst 

these being the inability to attract and 

retain research staff, particularly for 

senior positions due to uncompetitive 

remuneration packages.  However, 

the Board continues to address these 

challenges.  I wish to thank fellow 

members of the BIDPA Board of Trustees 

for providing oversight to ensure that 

the Institute delivers on its mandate. 

I am confident that you will play a 

critical role in ensuring that the newly 

adopted strategic plan is effectively 

implemented.   I wish to express my 

gratitude to BIDPA management and 

employees for their dedication under 

challenging circumstances and believe 

that you will sustain efforts to raise the 

profile of the Institute to greater heights. 

On behalf of the Board, I wish to express 

my appreciation for the continued 

financial support from the Government 

of Botswana, without which BIDPA would 

not have been able to deliver on its 

mandate.  

It is my pleasure to present the BIDPA 2019 Annual Report. 
During the period under review, the institute made notable 
achievements, key among which was the adoption of a new 
Strategic Plan in September 2018 which will be implemented in 
the Financial Year 2019/2020. 

CHAIRMAN’S 
STATEMENT

Andrew M. Motsomi
Chairman 
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S
OVERVIEW

The year 2019 proved to be an 
exciting period as it marked 
the commencement of the 
implementation of the Institute’s 
strategic plan, the new roadmap for 
the next 5-years. 

The strategic plan identifies five 

broad research focus areas, namely, 

Macroeconomics and Development, 

Trade, Industry and Private Sector 

Development, Human and Social 

Development, Environment, Agriculture 

and Natural Resources, and Governance 

and Administration. Focusing on these 

areas will align the Institute’s research 

to national priorities and ensure that we 

serve the needs of our stakeholders in the 

public policy space. 

During 2018/2019, the Institute undertook 

a number of demand- and supply-driven 

projects.   Key demand-driven studies 

include: (1) Contribution of copyright 

industries to the economy of Botswana 

and (2) Evaluation of the alcohol abuse 

reduction strategies in Botswana. The first 

study, which was undertaken on behalf 

of the Companies and Intellectual 

Property Authority (CIPA), led to the 

publication of a report, which provides 

policy options for enhancing the 

contribution of copyright industries in 

Botswana. I believe the report provides 

an opportunity for policy dialogue and 

for formulating appropriate intervention 

for copyright industries. The second 

study provided recommendations to the 

Ministry of Health and Wellness regarding 

reforms to interventions for curbing 

alcohol abuse in Botswana, some of 

which are already being implemented 

by the Government of Botswana. Other 

demand-driven projects are listed in 

this report to allow our stakeholders to 

appreciate the policy work we engaged 

in during the year.

The Institute also completed 12 supply-

driven projects covering a wide-

spectrum of research areas. As shown in 

this report, the findings from these studies 

were published as working papers, 

which can be accessed through the 

BIDPA website (www.bidpa.bw). I urge 

our stakeholders to visit the Institute’s 

website to access any publications of 

interest. 

While undertaking both demand- and 

supply-driven projects, satisfying our 

customers has remained at the core 

of all our operations, to ensure that 

our services adhered to quality, cost 

and time parameters. Our long-term 

objective of upskilling and enhancing 

BIDPA employees’ capabilities to ensure 

effective service delivery continued 

during the period under review with 

staff attending a variety of short courses, 

workshops, conferences and seminars. 

With these achievements, we remain 

resolute in our pursuit to maintain our 

ranking as the leading think tank in Sub-

Saharan Africa, the position we have 

achieved for two years in a row. Our vision 

is not only to maintain the regional ranking, 

but to also improve our global ranking 

which currently places us at position 44. 

These achievements serve as motivation 

to us, as they were realized against 

the backdrop of various challenges, 

particularly the inability to attract and 

retain senior research staff, which is due to 

limited financial resources. 

In conclusion, I would like to thank the 

Chairman of the BIDPA Board and 

his fellow Trustees for their strategic 

leadership and for their oversight role, 

which have ensured that management 

stays on course. I also thank BIDPA 

Management and staff for their 

dedication to ensuring that the Institute 

achieves its mandate.  

Lastly, let me take this opportunity 

to express my gratitude to all our 

stakeholders within Government, 

Development Partners, Non-State 

Actors and Funding Agencies for their 

collaboration and continued support. 

Le ka moso Bagaetsho!!!

The Institute undertook a record number 
of supply driven research projects 
compared to the previous years.

Tebogo B. Seleka, Ph.D.
Executive Director
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The Botswana Institute for Development Policy Analysis (BIDPA) is an independent trust set up by a Presidential 
Decree. It started operations in 1995 as a non-government policy research institute. The Institute’s mandate 
is defined by the five components of Institutional Capacity Building; Economic Research and Policy Analysis; 
Professional Training; Networking and Public Education; and Publication and Dissemination. The focus of BIDPA work 
is mainly informed by the Institute’s mandate as defined in the Deed of Trust that established the institution. 

CORPORATE 
PROFILE

To promote and conduct research, 

analysis and publication on development 

policy issues, which are of relevance 

to Botswana and the Southern African 

region.

To monitor the performance of 

the Botswana economy and the 

management of public policy 

implementation, especially with regard 

to the implications for economic and 

social development.

To offer advice and consultancy services 

to agencies of Government and other 

clients under suitable contractual and 

other arrangements.

To provide technical and financial 

assistance, directly and indirectly, 

to individuals and organisations in 

Botswana as deemed desirable for 

purposes of facilitating policy analysis.

To assist professional training and public 

education of Botswana citizens in 

matters relating to policy analysis and 

encourage collaboration between 

expatriates and local professionals 

in these matters in ways which build, 

or augment, national capacities for 

performance and understanding of 

policy analysis.

To employ staff members who will 

themselves, or jointly with other 

organisations or qualified people, carry 

out research, consultancy, training 

and education projects, including 

arrangement and management of 

contractual relationships designed 

to facilitate such activities by persons 

affiliated with the institute.

To present or publish, as the case may be, 

the outcome of its policy analysis, orally 

or in writing, to individuals, organisations 

or the public at large.

To mobilise and administer funds to be 

used for achievement of the objectives 

and performance of the functions of the 

Institute.

 To be a renowned policy 
research Institute in Africa.

VI
SI

ON

We provide evidence-based
socio-economic policy advice and 

related capacity building.

M
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Professionalism Integrity Competitiveness Team Work Botho

BIDPA Objectives
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The Board of Trustees, constituted in terms of the Deed of Trust of 1995, is 
responsible for the policy direction that the Institute takes from time to time. 
The Board is vested with the authority and responsibility to exercise control 
over all the activities conducted by the Institute. 

There are 7 members, five of whom are representatives of institutions from the 

Government of Botswana (Office of the President; and Ministry of Finance and Economic 

Development), University of Botswana, Bank of Botswana, and Business Botswana. The 

other two are representatives of civil society and research professionals. The Executive 

Director is an ex-officio member and Secretary to the Board.  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
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There are three subcommittees of the Board: Finance, Risk and Audit Committee, Tender and Procurement 
Committee, and Human Resource Committee. The Finance and Audit Committee deals with and advises on 
financial policies of the Institute and related matters. The Tender and Procurement Committee focuses on 
procurement policy issues, while the Human Resource Committee deals with policies related to employees of the 
organization. 

Finance and Audit 
Committee Members 

SUB COMMITTEES
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Human Resource 
Committee Members
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Tender & Procurement 
Committee Members
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The BIDPA Management Committee comprises the Executive Director, the Programme 

Coordinator, the Chief Librarian, the Finance Administrator, the IT Manager 

(deceased), the HR Manager and all Senior Research Fellows. The Executive Director 

(ED) is appointed by the Board of Trustees. The ED has everyday management 

responsibility for all the activities of the Institute. Senior Research Fellows are heads 

of the research units of the Institute. Non-research managers are responsible for 

Information and Technology, Finance, Programme Coordination, Library and Human 

Resources.
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ORGANOGRAM

BOARD of 
Trustees

EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR
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KEY  
HIGHLIGHTS

Development of the 
new Strategic Plan 

2018 - 2023
Top Think Tank in Sub- 
Saharan Africa

Working Papers 
completed 12

Demand Driven 
Research Projects 
completed, 6-ongoing

4
Journal Articles 
published 3

 Clean Financial Audit 

01

02

03

04

05

06
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LIBRARY
SERVICES

The Botswana Institute for 
Development Policy Analysis 
is housed in BIDPA House at 
Kgale View, Plot 134, Gaborone 
International Finance Park. BIDPA 
House includes two seminar rooms 
and an automated research library 
that provides access to internet and 
a range of specialized electronic 
databases.

Through its library and information 

technology resources, BIDPA has been 

able to extend its information services 

to a wider audience. The library 

collection emphasizes the following 

subject areas: Agricultural Economics; 

Development Economics; Financial 

Economics; Gender; Globalization; 

Governance and Civil Society; HIV and 

AIDS; Income Distribution; Policy Making; 

Poverty; Private Sector/Privatization; 

Public Administration; and Research & 

Statistical Methods. 

BIDPA library has in the recent past 

hosted the Botswana Development 

Information Centre (BDIC) which was 

a World Bank partnership initiative with 

local development agencies meant 

to facilitate access to development 

information and resources sharing. 

The BDIC was a one stop centre which 

offered development information in 

print, electronic and online formats. As 

a result of this partnership, the library 

served as a World Bank repository for 

both print and electronic information 

resources.

This initiative has added a great deal 

of value to BIDPA library collections, 

particularly in terms of development 

related information. 

In addition to making policy information 

material readily available via the BIDPA 

website; http://www.bidpa.bw, the 

library has content sharing arrangements 

with other organizations such as the 

South African Institute of International 

Affairs (SAIIA) and the British Library for 

Development Studies (BLDS). These 

partnerships have resulted in increased 

web presence and remarkable visibility 

of the Institute as BIDPA research 

outputs become available through 

multiple digital platforms. The library 

also maintains a digital Institutional 

Repository to further promote access 

to BIDPA research products. This is a 

digital archive that houses all BIDPA 

publications and allows for ‘anywhere 

and anytime’ access to the publications. 

This has further enhanced BIDPA digital 

footprint and visibility in general. 
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This section covers 
supply and demand-
driven research activities 
undertaken by the Institute 
during the 2018/2019 
financial year. 

Supply Driven Research 
Challenges of Project 
Implementation in Local 
Government: The case of 
Francistown City Council and 
Kweneng District Council.

Botswana is faced with many challenges 

of project implementation. Since 

independence detailed projects and 

programmes were initiated, with limited 

and often less developed state capacity 

to implement them. This study focuses on 

challenges of project implementation 

in Botswana’s tier of local government. 

A qualitative case research method 

approach was employed to undertake 

the study. Telephonic interviews 

were conducted with politicians and 

employees from Francistown City Council 

(FCC) and Kweneng District Council 

(KDC) and data was analysed using 

thematic analysis. The paper outlines 

project implementation challenges in 

Local Authorities (LA). For instance, lack 

of capacity, lack of commitment by 

the District Development Committee 

(DDC), poor stakeholder engagement 

and lack of financial autonomy by 

councils.  Some of the identified 

implementation challenges are not 

peculiar to the two LAs but cut across 

local authorities in Botswana. However, 

low human capacity in local authorities 

was cited as a major problem in project 

implementation. 

Financial Inclusion and Its Impact on 

Employment Creation in Botswana. 

The study examines the impact of 

financial inclusion on employment 

creation in Botswana using quarterly 

time series data for the period 2004-

2016. Using Autoregressive Distributed 

Lag (ARDL) model, we find that 

availability of bank branches, ownership 

of a bank account and borrowing from 

the commercial bank have a positive 

impact on employment creation in 

the short run. Similarly, availability of 

bank branches, ownership of bank 

account has a positive relationship with 

employment creation in the long run. 

Depositors with commercial banks have 

a negative bearing on employment 

creation, both in the short run and in 

the long run. Therefore, policies should 

be aimed at ensuring easy access to 

the financial sector by way of reducing 

costs associated with account opening 

as well as creating affordable deposit 

and borrowing windows to the financially 

excluded groups.

Education & Labor Market Activity of 

Women in Botswana. 

This study examines the prevalence of 

female participation in labor market 

activities and investigates the role 

played by education in this participation. 

Using the 2015/16 Botswana Multi 

Topic Household Survey data and a 

multinomial logit model, the study found 

that women with tertiary education 

are more likely to be wage employed 

relative to self-employment, whereas 

those with lower to no education are 

more likely to be unemployed or out of 

the labor force. This is because higher 

education is normally considered a 

prerequisite for most wage jobs. It is 

therefore imperative for the government 

to continue educating women beyond 

secondary level as it will better equip 

them to participate in more meaningful 

labour market activities. On the other 

hand, there is need to stimulate the 

demand side of the labour market 

in order to accommodate the rising 

numbers of women with high levels 

of education. In order to encourage 

participation of women in high rewarding 

self-employment activities, there is need 

to intensify empowerment schemes that 

are largely oriented towards their self-

employment.

The Impact of Macroeconomic Variables 

on Capital Market Development in 

Botswana’s Economy 

The study examines the impact of 

macroeconomic variables on stock and 

bond markets development in Botswana 

using Autoregressive Distributed Lag 

(ARDL)-Bounds Test.  The results indicate 

that macroeconomic variables have an 

RESEARCH AND POLICY
ANALYSIS ACTIVITIES
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impact on capital market development 

in Botswana. In the short run, real output, 

money supply and inflation have a 

positive influence on the development 

of the stock market, while real exchange 

rate retards its development. Real 

output further supports the development 

of the stock market in the long run. For 

the bond market, only two variables, 

inflation rate and lending rate have 

positive and negative impact on the 

bond market in the long run respectively, 

while none of the variables influence 

the bond market in the short run. Policy 

implications include increased efforts 

by policy makers to increase money 

supply, gross domestic product for the 

development of stock market, while the 

bond market development requires a 

decrease in lending rates.

Structural Transformation & Fiscal Policy 

in Botswana. 

This paper analyses impacts of fiscal 

policy on structural transformation in 

Botswana using structural vector auto 

regression (SVAR) model over the period 

of 1990 to 2015. The study uses an 

inclusive sustainable transformation (IST) 

index and government expenditure as 

proxies for structural transformation and 

fiscal policy respectively. Results show 

that prudent fiscal policy can be used 

as a major strategic tool for structural 

transformation in Botswana. Most 

evidently, IST index responds positively 

to government expenditure shocks over 

time. In addition, fiscal policy innovations 

dominantly account for movements in 

structural transformation in Botswana.  

Notwithstanding, Botswana has a 

lot of potential and opportunity to 

use its fiscal policy more effectively and 

efficiently to promote an inclusive structural 

transformation that leads to sustainable 

economic growth.  

  

Unemployment in the SADC Region

The objective of this study is to estimate 

the determinants of unemployment 

in the Southern African Development 

Community (SADC) region using annual 

data from 2000 to 2016. Given the 

characteristic of the data, the study 

adopts Fixed Effect (FE) estimation 

technique. For further analysis, the 

study also estimated the ARDL panel 

model to capture persistence effect 

of unemployment in the region. The 

FE results reveal that real GDP, foreign 

direct investment, consumer price 

index, credit to the private sector and 

interest rate are negatively related to 

unemployment, while trade openness, 

labour productivity and population have 

a positive sign. The results estimated with 

ARDL model are not very different from 

those of FE model, but we obtained a 

noticeably smaller estimate for ARDL 

model. Variables which have negative 

association with unemployment 

suggest that they are likely to reduce 

unemployment. Therefore, such 

indicators may be of interest to policy 

makers when formulating unemployment 

reduction strategies. In terms of policy 

advise, the study recommends the 

governments of SADC member states to 

encourage the education system that 

can equip leaners with entrepreneurial 

skills and in-job practical skills, in order to 

promote high success rate of SMMEs as 

well as to provide skills needed in the 

labour market. It also recommended 

enforcement of free trade of goods 

and services in the region as a means 

of making the industrial sector an 

engine of economic growth in order to 

create much needed employment. 

Consumption Inequality in Botswana: 

The decomposition of the gini coefficient 

of consumer expenditures. 

This paper applies the Lerman and 

Yitzhaki (1985) inequality decomposition 

approach on food and non-food 

expenditures on the 2009/10 Botswana 

Core Welfare Indicator Survey; and the 

2015/16 Multi Topic Indicator Survey 

datasets with an objective to see 

how overall inequality translates into 

inequality within each expenditure 

component. To test for a robustness of 

our results, we apply a simple bootstrap 

procedure to obtain the means, standard 

errors and confidence intervals for the 

component Gini coefficients estimates. 

The decomposition analysis results show 

that overall inequality based on the Gini 

coefficient of consumption expenditure 

within the groups has increased 

between the two periods from 0.498 to 

0.533. These results suggest that this rise 

in overall expenditure inequality is due to 

the increased burden in the household 

budget of non-food spending, which 

tends to be more unequal than food 

spending. The consumption expenditure 

is very unequal on non-food items 

like recreation and hotels; health; 

education and transport. On one hand, 

lower Gini coefficients are observed 

for food; and clothing and footwear; 

these commodities are considered as 

necessities among others. This paper 

finally offers some possible policy 

measures to curb this consumption 

expenditure inequality.

The Impact of Infrastructure on Economic 

Growth in Botswana

The study determines the impact of 

infrastructure on economic growth 

in Botswana. The study employs an 

Autoregressive Distributed Lag (ARDL) 

estimation technique to determine 

how infrastructure affects economic 

growth in Botswana. The empirical results 

show that healthcare infrastructure has 

a positive and significant impact on 

economic growth in Botswana in the long 

run. The results further reveal that electric 

power consumption has a positive and 

significant effect in influencing economic 

growth in the short run. The results 

imply that in order to achieve higher 

economic growth, policymakers should 

consider accelerating improvement of 

healthcare infrastructure. 

The Impact of Business Regulatory 

Quality on Private Sector Investment in 

Botswana. 

A market-friendly regulatory environment 

is key for private sector investment. In 

this paper, we examine the impact of 

business regulatory quality on private 

sector investment in Botswana. The 

paper finds that the business regulatory 

environment stimulates private sector 

investment in the long term and this 

phenomenon occurs when the quality 

of bureaucracy improves, among other 

factors. Other critical factors affecting 

private sector investment examined in this 

paper include; corporate credit, output 

and public infrastructure investment. 

Private sector investment responds 
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positively to increases in corporate credit 

in the short term but not responsive in the 

long term. Economic activities support 

private sector investment positively but 

are weak. On the other hand, public 

infrastructure investment crowds in(out) 

investment in the short and long term 

respectively. Policy wise, Botswana 

should further deepen its efforts towards 

creating a market-friendly regulatory 

environment and also consider how 

business regulatory quality interact 

with other policy variables for better 

investment and growth outcomes. 

Impacts of Access to ICTs on Employment 

Status in Botswana. 

It is clear that technology has brought 

about significant changes in the 

livelihoods of people, creating new 

forms of employment and advancing 

the traditional forms of employment for 

individuals. Many countries continue to 

invest in Information and Communication 

Technologies (ICTs) with the view 

to tackling some of the economic 

challenges such as unemployment. 

Botswana like other African countries 

has made annual budgetary allocations 

towards ICT Infrastructure. Despite the 

Government’s efforts to invest and 

improve access to ICT, the country 

still faces a high unemployment rate, 

particularly amongst the youth. This study 

therefore, investigates the impact that 

access to ICTs has on the employment 

of individuals in Botswana. In order to 

provide a detailed analysis of the impact 

of ICTs on employment we apply a probit 

model for binary choice responses to 

being employed or not being employed, 

using the data from the 2014 Botswana 

Household Access and Individual use of 

Information Communication Technology 

Survey carried out by Statistics Botswana. 

The empirical results provide evidence 

that access to ICTs collectively has 

a positive impact on employment in 

Botswana. However, disaggregating 

the ICTs forms presents slightly different 

results, e-skill training and access to the 

internet in Botswana are not significant 

in explaining an individual’s employment 

status, this may be associated with 

low uptake of internet and ICTs skills 

by individuals in Botswana. The policy 

message from this study is that there is 

a need for aggressive implementation 

of collective ICTs in human resource 

development. In addition, there is need 

to improve collective ICTs infrastructure 

to create more employment. 

Gender and Corruption in Botswana: 

Perceptions, Participation and 

Considerations for Anti-Corruption Policy

Several studies have argued that 

corruption has a greater impact on 

women than men and that increasing 

women’s representation in key decision-

making positions has a positive effect in 

reducing corruption. However, limited 

scholarly and policy attention has 

been devoted to understanding the 

link between gender and corruption 

in Botswana. This paper explores the 

gendered differences of perceived and 

actual participation in bureaucratic 

corruption in Botswana. By examining 

Afro barometer data and undertaking 

a documentary analysis, the study 

finds that while levels of perceived 

corruption by men and women in public 

institutions were high, participation in 

bureaucratic corruption (bribery) was 

considerably lower. Contrary to the 

notion that corruption has a greater 

impact on women than men, this study 

finds that higher levels of participation 

across all public service categories 

were reported by unemployed men, 

in particular, having to give a gift or a 

favour to avoid problems with the police. 

Notwithstanding the scant availability 

of data, the documentary analysis 

revealed that non-monetary forms of 

corruption such as sextortion (sexual 

extortion) have been experienced by 

female students and undocumented 

female migrants in Botswana. 

Nevertheless, this form of corruption has 

received little policy attention, despite its 

potential to undermine gender equality 

efforts. Additionally, the study finds little 

correlation between higher levels of 

women’s representation in key decision-

making positions (i.e., parliament and 

cabinet) and lower levels of corruption 

in Botswana. There is a need for both 

the gender and anti-corruption policy 

framework to be synthesized in order 

to specifically reflect on and respond 

to the perceived gendered dimensions 

of corruption.  The establishment of 

an independent police authority or 

commission might not only increase levels 

of public trust and confidence in the 

police service, but also strengthen levels 

of transparency and accountability.

Youth Employment in Botswana: 

Comparative Analysis of 2009/10 and 

2015/16. 

The study examines determinants of 

youth unemployment in Botswana by 

comparing two different datasets- 

(2009/10 Botswana Core Welfare 

Indicator Survey (BCWIS) and 2015/16 

Botswana Multi-Topic Household Survey 

(BMTHS)). The main objective of the 

study is to identify the factors that 

determine the employment probabilities 

of the youth. Using a probit model we 

find that gender, age, marital status 

and education level have an impact 

on the employment probabilities in both 

2009/10 and 2015/16 time periods. Males 

had a higher chance of employability 

compared to females. The government 

and private sector need to develop 

programmes that will increase women 

participation in the labour market. 

Results also indicate that youth with post-

secondary education have a better 

chance of employment. Individuals 

dwelling in rural and urban areas are less 

likely to get employment. Government 

needs to boost business activity in rural 

areas by identifying and investing in 

economic activities located there.
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DEMAND DRIVEN 
RESEARCH  

COMPLETED PROJECTS
Consumer And Operator Satisfaction 

And Perceptions Survey
The Botswana Institute for Development 

Policy Analysis, (BIDPA) has been 

engaged by the Botswana 

Communications Regulatory Authority 

(BOCRA) to undertake a study to 

determine consumer and operator 

satisfaction as well as the perceptions 

of operators regarding their relationship 

with the regulator - BOCRA. The 

objectives of the study are to: (i) 

Probe consumer perceptions on the 

services provided by the operators i.e. 

quality of service, range of services, 

and efficiency of service, (ii) Probe 

operator’s perception of the regulator in 

areas of fairness, promptness, neutrality 

and effectiveness, (iii) Identify pointers 

for future developments to address 

negative perceptions, (iv) Compare the 

consumer awareness of the sectors and 

the level of service provision as identified 

in the 2015 survey with the present 

comprehension and to determine the 

trend and (v) Assess both the consumer 

and operator participation in regulation 

and policy development.

Study On The Contribution Of Copyright 

Industries To The National Economy Of 

Botswana 

The Companies and Intellectual Property 

Authority (CIPA) contracted BIDPA to 

undertake a study on the contribution of 

copyright based industry to the national 

economy. The main objective of the 

study is to estimate the contribution 

of the copyright industry to the three 

(3) economic variables, being GDP, 

Employment, and trade. The study also 

seeks to assess the market structure, 

value chains, demand and supply 

patterns of the copyright industry. 

Alcohol Reduction Strategies Study 

BIDPA has been contracted to undertake 

the above study on behalf of the Ministry 

of Health and Wellness. The study seeks 

to evaluate the various interventions 

that have been put in place to reduce 

excessive alcohol consumption in 

Botswana. The specific objectives of 

the study are to: determine the overall 

impact of the interventions against 

excessive alcohol consumption; assess 

the economic and other related impacts 

of the Alcohol Levy and other regulatory 

measures on alcohol consumption; and 

based on international best practice, 

recommend strategic priorities to 

enhance the effectiveness of the 

national interventions against alcohol 

abuse.

As a result of the negative impacts 

of excessive alcohol consumption on 

individuals and the society at large, 

the Botswana Government has come 

up with a number of interventions to 

address the situation and are briefly 

discussed in section 2 of this report. Whilst 

these interventions continue to decrease 

alcohol per capita consumption, a study 

titled “Evaluation of Alcohol National 

Interventions Against Alcohol Abuse in 

Botswana” undertaken by Botswana 

Institute for Development Policy Analysis 

(BIDPA) on behalf of the Ministry of 

Health and Wellness (MoHW) in 2017 

found that policies and regulatory 

framework currently being implemented 

have not been very effective due to 

implementation challenges ranging 

from poor coordination, inadequate 

institutional structures and administrative 

challenges. Thus, there has been a 

general feeling that the measures 
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undertaken to curb excessive alcohol 

consumption have largely been 

ineffective.

In order to make the intervention 

effective and in line with international 

best practice, calls have been made 

to reconsider the strategies and align 

them with the WHO Regional Strategy 

to Reduce Alcohol Related Harm 

of 2017. The main argument for the 

ineffectiveness of the campaigns is that 

most of them are more punitive, rather 

than behaviour change oriented. Some 

of these campaigns have also resulted 

in negative effects, such as job losses in 

the alcohol and entertainment industries 

without any significant achievement 

of outcomes, such as reduced drinking 

and driving and road accidents due to 

drinking and driving. 

ON-GOING PROJECTS 
Transformation of BMC into a Farmer 

Owned Enterprise 

The objective of the study is to support 

the beneficial integration of Botswana 

into the regional and global economy 

and thereby contribute to sustainable 

economic development and poverty 

reduction. The study seeks to boost the 

beef value chain in Botswana and the 

profitable participation of farmers. The 

study purpose is two-fold:

i)  explore the use of “good practice 

case” of Norway Farmer-Owned 

Meat Enterprise (Nortura and 

the GPS Food Group, Norway) to 

correspondingly transform the BMC. 

This purpose has two result areas, (a) 

benchmarking mission by officials 

of the Botswana National Beef 

Producers Union to Norway’s GPS 

and Nortura undertaken, and (b) 

benchmarking report with an action 

plan; and 

ii)  develop a framework for transforming 

the BMC into a farmer-owned beef 

abattoir and marketing company, 

which also has two result areas: 

(a) a framework for transforming 

the Botswana Meat Commission 

into a farmer-owned beef abattoir 

and marketing company, and (b) 

a profitable business model for the 

new company with subsequent 

approval by Government.

Decentralization Policy and 

Implementation Plan For Botswana 

BIDPA has been engaged by Ministry 

of Local Government and Rural 

Development (MLGRD) to facilitate the 

development of the Decentralization 

Policy and Implementation Plan for 

Botswana. The specific objectives of the 

policy focus on core issues related to the 

empowerment of local authorities as 

key drivers of good governance, human 

resource capacity, planning, financing, 

accountability and transparency. 

Beef & Other Agricultural Value Chains 

AERC contracted BIDPA to undertake 

this study to assist in the coordination 

of AERC Collaborative Masters in 

Agricultural and Applied Economics 

Project on Beef and Agricultural Value 

Chains Research through the co-editing 

of research papers for publication. BIDPA 

is required to; 

•  review all country case study 

papers and provide comments on 

each of the papers.  

•  Provide input into the preparation 

of the necessary documentation 

for meetings on the project as 

may be required and report 

presentation thereof

•  Working with AERC on the planning 

and preparation of research 

workshops

•  Prepare workshop reports

•  Provide input into the preparation 

of reports and other materials 

for AERC and donors as may be 

requested by the secretariat

•  Undertake any other project 

related tasks as may be requested 

by the Secretariat

An Assessment Of Investment 

Opportunities In The Manafacturing 

Sector In Botswana

BIDPA is contracted by Citizen 

Entrepreneurial Development Agency 

(CEDA) to do a study whose purpose is to 

identify business opportunities within the 

manufacturing sector to enable both 

potential and existing CEDA clients to 

meaningfully exploit these opportunities. 

The study will delineate the state of the 

sector, including the identification of key 

successes, challenges and opportunities 

for growth. The study will explore niche 

sectors that provide both a competitive 

and comparative advantage for eased 

entry and start-up for participating firms. A 

number of studies have been carried out 

on the manufacturing sector at national 

level, this study therefore brings the micro 

aspect with implementable initiatives for 

the agency. The study is expected to 

recommend production regions, funding 

models for manufacturing SMME’s, 

technical and technological needs and 

interfacing model for the development 

of manufacturing SMME’s. 

Consultancy to Revise Existing National 

Poverty Eradication Policy Framework

BIDPA is contracted by UN to revise the 

existing National Poverty Eradication 

Policy framework with a focus on multi-

dimensional approach to poverty 

eradication. BIDPA has to produce a 

final Draft Poverty Eradication Policy 

that includes a institution/governance 

structure for the implementation of the 

Botswana National Poverty Eradication 

Policy with a clear coordination 

mechanism and institutional roles and 

accountabilities. 

Evaluation of Vulnerable Groups Feeding 

Programme

BIDPA is sub-contracted by Mokoro to 

undertake a study that aims to firstly 

address the relevance, efficiency, 

effectiveness, impact and sustainability 

of the Vulnerable Groups Feeding 

Programme. Secondly, given that the 

level of stunting amongst the nation’s 

children remains unacceptable, a more 

effective approach must be proposed 

on how stunting can be reduced.  BIDPA 

is engaged to manage data collection 

exercise and analyse the data. 
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TRAINING/SHORT COURSES  
1. Ms. Bangwe Siwawa-Moepeng 

and Mr. Jan Seanego attended 

training on “Overview of ERM 

Fundamentals: The Basis of 

Launching ERM for Strategic 

Value” organized by Poole 

College of Management, on the 

28th February-1st March,2019 in 

North Carolina, United States of 

America.  

2. Ms. Goitseone Khanie attended 

training on “Private Sector 

Participation in Improving 

Industry Performance” organized 

by the Institute for Capacity 

Development, ICD, 18th -22nd 

February, 2019 in Windhoek, 

Namibia. 

3. Dr. Margaret Sengwaketse and 

Dr. Molefe Phirinyane attended 

training on “International 

Programme for Development 

Evaluation” organized by 

International Training Programme 

for Development Evaluation 

Training (IPDET) from 16-27th July, 

2018 in Bern, Switzerland. 

4. Mr. Thulani Ketsitlile attended 

training on “International Financial 

Reporting Standards, IFRS and 

International Public Accounting 

Standards, IPSAS” organized by 

African Training Institute, from 22nd 

October to 3rd November,2018 in 

Johannesburg South Africa.

5. Ms. Neo Maruping attended 

training on “Effective Customer 

Service” organized by Botswana 

National Productivity Centre, 

BNPC on the 23-26th October 

,2018 in Kasane.

6. Dr. Kelesego Mmolainyane 

attended training on “Public 

Expenditure and Financial 

Accountability PEFA” organized 

by Ministry of Finance and 

Economic Development, (MFED) 

on the 21st August, 2018

7. Dr. Kelesego Mmolainyane 

attended an online training on 

“Financial Inclusion” organized 

by The Macroeconomic and 

Financial Management Institute 

of Eastern and Southern Africa 

(MEFMI) on the 16th November, 

2018.

CONFERENCES/SEMINARS

1. Ms. Kedibonye Sekakela   

attended the “Botswana’s 

Investment Summit” 21st February, 

2019 held at Avani Hotel, 

Gaborone.

2. Dr. T.B. Seleka, Prof. Eugene 

Kouassi, Dr. Kelesego 

Mmolainyane, Ms. Tshepiso 

Gaetsewe, Ms. Thabile Samboma, 

Mr. Mpho Raboloko and Ms. Pinkie 

Kebakile attended the 2018 

National Business Conference 

organized by BOCCIM on 

the 9-11th September, 2018 in 

Francistown.

3. Ms. Goitseone Khanie, Ms. Koketso 

Molefhi, Ms. Lillian Mookodi, Ms. 

Masedi Tshukudu, Dr. Molefe 

Phirinyane, Mr. Mpho Raboloko 

and Ms. Tshepiso Gaetsewe 

attended the Open Data Week 

conference on “Digital Frontiers 

of Global Science” organized 

by Botswana Open Science and 

Open Data Forum on the 5th-8th 

November, 2018.

4. Ms. Thabile Samboma attended 

a conference on “Innovation, 

Resourcefulness, Integration and 

Inclusivity; Fundamentals for the 

Transformation of Governance 

and Public Administration in Africa 

to Achieve the Agenda 2063 

and Sustainable Development 

Goals” jointly organized by 

African Association for Public 

Administration and Management 

and the Government of Botswana 

on the 6-9th November, 2018.

5. Ms. Bangwe Siwawa-Moepeng 

attended a conference on 

“Accounting in Extraordinary 

Times: The Future of Finance” jointly 

organized by AICPA in America 

and CIMA in the United Kingdom 

on the 13-14th November, 2018 

held in Johannesburg, South 

Africa.

6. Mr. Marumo Omotoye and Ms. 

Thabile Samboma attended the 

International Policy Dialogue on 

Regional Economic Communities 

and Peace Building in Southern 

Africa jointly organized by The 

University of Botswana-Nordic 

Africa Institute on the 23rd – 24th 

May 2018 held in Gaborone. 

7. Mr. Marumo Omotoye and Ms. 

Thabile Samboma attended 

The Directorate on Corruption 

and Economic Crime (DCEC)’s 

Regional Conference on 

“Corruption and the Challenge 

of Economic Transformation in 

Southern Africa” on the 18th June 

2018 held in Gaborone.

8. Mr. Marumo Omotoye and Ms. 

Thabile Samboma attended a 

Panel Discussion on “Directorate 

on Corruption and Economic 

CAPACITY BUILDING 
ACTIVITIES
BIDPA strives to further enhance its employees’ capabilities by providing them with opportunities to attend a 
broad range of capacity building activities. These activities include short courses, workshops, and conferences 
BIDPA employees participated in. The following are the capacity building activities that were undertaken by 
BIDPA employees during the year under review. 
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Crimes on the Whistleblowing 

Act” on 9th July 2018 held in 

Gaborone.

9. Mr. Marumo Omotoye attended 

a conference organised by 

Botswana Centre for Public 

Integrity (BCPI) on “Transparency 

and Accountability: Building a 

Culture of Integrity – The Role 

of Civil Society” on the 12-

14th September 2018 held in 

Gaborone.

10. Mr. Marumo Omotoye attended 

a conference on “Democracy, 

Human Rights and Governance: 

Trends, Challenges and 

Prospects” organized by Africa 

Governance Architecture (AGA) 

on the 28–30th November 2018 

held in Gaborone. 

11. Ms. Thabile Samboma attended a 

7th Post-Tana Forum in Botswana 

on “The Content and Shape of the 

Peace and Security Agenda in 

the Post-Reform Era: Reflections” 

on the 18-19th July 2018 held in 

Gaborone.

12. Dr. Kelesego Mmolainyane 

attended a public forum as a 

discussant on “Budget Pitso” 

organized by the Ministry 

of Finance and Economic 

Development, (MFED) on the 18th 

September, 2018 in Gaborone 

13. Dr. Kelesego Mmolainyane 

attended a public forum as 

a reviewer “Planning Officers 

Manual Review” organized by the 

Ministry of Finance and Economic 

Development, ( MFED) on the 8th 

August, 2018 in Gaborone. 

WORKSHOPS/MEETINGS  

1. Prof. Patrick Malope attended a 

workshop organized by African 

Economic Research Consortium, 

AERC on “Boosting Decent 

Employment for Africa’s Youth” 

held in Nairobi Kenya on 31 

January- February 2019.

2. Mr. Marumo Omotoye attended 

a workshop organized by The 

International Budget Partnership, 

(IBP) on “Open Budget Survey 

Eastern and Southern Africa 

Budget Transparency” held on the 

3-4th May, 2018 in Nairobi, Kenya.  

3. Dr. Margaret Sengwaketse 

attended a meeting of Technical 

Experts on Finance and Trade 

organized by Ministry of Finance 

and Economic Development 

on the 20th March, 2019 in 

Johannesburg South Africa

4. Dr. Margaret Sengwaketse 

attended a meeting on Technical 

Experts on Finance and Trade 

organized by Ministry of Finance 

and Economic Development 

on the 31st August, 2018 in 

Johannesburg South Africa

5. Dr. Margaret Sengwaketse 

attended a meeting of the “Joint 

Task Team of Senior Finance and 

Trade Industry Officials” organized 

by Ministry of Finance and 

Economic Development, (MFED) 

on 17-19th September, 2018, held 

in Windhoek, Namibia

6. Pinkie Kebakile attended 

a workshop on “Productive 

Capacities, Export Diversification 

and Structural Economic 

Transformation in Africa 

Landlocked Developing Countries: 

Challenges, opportunities and 

the Way Forward” organized by 

United Nations Conference on 

Trade and Development, UNCTAD 

on 20th– 21st November, 2018 in 

Gaborone.

7. Dr. Kelesego Mmolainyane 

attended the International 

Monetary Fund’s workshop on 

Afritac South Capacity Building 

organized by Ministry of Finance 

and Economic Development 

(MFED) on the 20th November, 

2018, in Gaborone.

8. Dr. Kelesego Mmolainyane 

and Ms. Kedibonye Sekakela 

presented at a meeting of the 

“Salaries Review Commission” 

organized by Ministry of Finance 

and Economic Development 

(MFED) on the 14th December, 

2019 in Gaborone. 

9. Dr. Tebogo Seleka attended a 

meeting on “Exports Diversification 

and Youth Employment” organized 

by United Nations Conference 

on Trade and Development, 

(UNCTAD) on the 5-7th May, 2018 

held in Accra, Ghana. 

PUBLICATIONS 

BIDPA Working Paper Series 

1. Gaetsewe, T. (2019). Youth 

Employment in Botswana: 

Comparative Analysis of 2009/10 

And 2015/16 BIDPA Working Paper 

No 70.

2. Omotoye, M. (2019). Gender 

and Corruption in Botswana: 

Perceptions, Participation and 

Considerations for Anti-Corruption 

Policy. BIDPA Working Paper No 69. 

3. Tshukudu, M. (2019). Impacts of 

Access to ICT’s on Employment 

Status in Botswana. BIDPA Working 

Paper No. 68.

4. Sekakela, K. (2019). The Impact 

of Business Regulatory Quality 

on Private Sector Investment in 

Botswana. BIDPA Working Paper 

No 67.
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5. Raboloko, M. (2019). The Impact 

of Infrastructure on Economic 

Growth in Botswana. BIDPA 

Working Paper No 66.

6. Mookodi, L. (2019). Consumption 

Inequality in Botswana: The 

decomposition of the gini 

coefficient of consumer 

expenditures. BIDPA Working 

Paper No 65

7. Motsatsi, J. (2019). Unemployment 

in the SADC Region. BIDPA Working 

Paper No 64.

8. Mmolainyane, K. (2019). Structural 

Transformation & Fiscal Policy in 

Botswana. BIDPA Working Paper 

No 63.

9. Molefhi, K. (2019). The Impact of 

Macroeconomic Variables on 

Capital Market Development in 

Botswana’s Economy. Working 

Paper, No 62:

10. Khanie, G. (2019). Education & 

Labour Market Activity of Women 

in Botswana. Working Paper, N o 

61.

11. Molefhi, K. (2019). Financial 

Inclusion and its Impact on 

Employment Creation in 

Botswana. BIDPA Working Paper 

No 60.

12. Thabile Samboma (2019). 

Challenges of Project 

Implementation in Local 

Government: The case of 

Francistown City Council and 

Kweneng District Council. Working 

Paper No 59.

JOURNAL ARTICLES 

1. Omotoye, A.M.T. (2019). 

Institutional and Policy 

Issues Experienced in the 

Implementation of Botswana’s 

National Disability Policy. Journal 

of Public Affairs, Vol. 19 (2).

2. Mookodi, L. and Kaboyakgosi 

G. (2018). “Towards a Whole 

of Government” Approach: 

Experiences of the Integrated 

Results Based Management 

System in Botswana. African 

Journal of Public Administration 

and Management. Vol 25, (2)

3. Phirinyane, M.B. 2018 Technology 

and the Nature of Active 

Citizenship: The Case of 

Botswana.” African Journal 

of Public Administration and 

Management. Vol 25, (2)

BIDPA Staff Members at the Cascading of the BIDPA Strategy at Cresta Mowana 
Lodge in Kasane on the 16-20th December, 2018
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Botswana Institute for Development Policy Analysis 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Trustees’ Responsibilities and Approval

The Trustees are required in terms of the Deed of Trust (MA 16/95) to maintain adequate accounting records and are 

responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included 

in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs 

of the Institute as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then 

ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged to express an 

independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and 

are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent 

judgements and estimates.

The Trustees acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by 

the Institute and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the Trustees 

to meet these responsibilities, the board of trustees sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error 

or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined 

framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties  to  ensure  an  acceptable  level  of  

risk.  These  controls  are  monitored  throughout  the  Institute  and  all employees are required to maintain the highest 

ethical standards in ensuring the Institute’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is 

above reproach. The focus of risk management in the Institute is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring 

all known forms of risk across the Institute. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Institute endeavours to 

minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls,  systems  and  ethical  behaviour  are  applied  and  

managed  within  predetermined  procedures  and constraints.

The Trustees are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of 

internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the 

annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not 

absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Trustees have reviewed the Institute’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2020 and, in light of this review and 

the current financial position, they are satisfied that the Institute has or had access to adequate resources to continue 

in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the Institute’s annual financial 

statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the Institute’s external auditors and their report is 

presented on pages 26 to 29.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 30 to 63, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, 

were approved by the board of trustees on 26 August 2019 and were signed on their behalf by:

Trustee Trustee
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To the Trustees of Botswana Institute for Development Policy Analysis

Opinion

We have audited the annual financial statements of Botswana Institute for Development Policy Analysis set out on pages 

8 to 38, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the statement  of  profit  or  loss  and  

other  comprehensive  income,  statement  of  changes  in  equity  and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 

and notes to the annual financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the annual financial statements give a true and fair view of, the financial position of Botswana Institute for 

Development Policy Analysis as at 31 March 2019, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended 

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards 

are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the annual financial statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Institute in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code 

of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and B) (IESBA Code) and other independence requirements applicable 

to performing audits of annual financial statements in Botswana. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with the IESBA Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits 

in Botswana. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our opinion.

Botswana Institute for Development Policy Analysis 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 

annual financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 

annual financial statements as a whole, and in forming Our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 

on these matters.

Key audit matter

Operating expenses and payables

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The operations of the entity are supported by significant expenditure and hence compliance with the procurement 

policies and procedures is key. We considered fraud perpetrated through payments to creditors as a significant risk. 

Thus, the matter has been considered to be key to the audit

Our approach

We obtained an understanding of the nature of the expenditure and have performed analytical procedures comparing 

incurred expenditures to expectation to verify the expenses.

We obtained the schedule of expenditure for the period and using monetary unit sampling technique, we selected a 

sample for testing for compliance.

We obtained the accrued liabilities schedules, reviewed the appropriateness of the accruals, scanned for unusual 

accounts and agreed the recorded expenditures to appropriate support.

We did not identify any exceptions or indications of fraud from these reviews.We obtained an understanding of the 

nature of the expenditure and have performed analytical procedures comparing incurred expenditures to expectation 

to verify the expenses.

Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Detailed Income Statement, 

which we obtained prior to the date of this report. Other information does not include the annual financial statements 

and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the annual financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit 

opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the annual financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 

in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the annual financial statements or 

our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Trustees  for the Annual Financial Statements

The Trustees are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the annual financial statements in accordance 

with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control, as the Trustees determine is necessary to 

enable the preparation of annual financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error.

In preparing the annual financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Institute’s ability to continue 

as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 

of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Institute or to cease operations, or have no realistic 

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the entity’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Annual Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and 

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify  and  assess  the  risks  of  material  misstatement  of  the  annual  financial  statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 

from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain  an  understanding  of  internal  control  relevant  to  the  audit  in  order  to  design  audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Institute’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by the Trustees.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Trustees use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Institute’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the annual financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 

Institute to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual financial statements, including the disclosures, 

and whether the annual financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with the Trustees regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Trustees with a statement that we have compiled with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 

bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Trustees, we determine those matters that were of most significant in the 

audit of the annual financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 

these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication.

 26 August 2019

Chartered Accountants     Gaborone

Certified Auditor: Madhavan Venkatachary (Memb No: 20030049)  

Certified Auditor of Public Interest Entity

Certificate Number: CAP 0017 2019
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Figures in Pula Note 2019 2018  

Assets

Non-Current Assets 

Property, plant and equipment 4       14 034 119 14 762 213  

Current Assets

Other financial asset 5&6 23 680 394 22 555 630

Trade and other receivables 8 1 341 413 2 125 657

Project work in progress 7 49 423 116 971

Cash and cash equivalents 9 6 528 874 5 794 976

        31 600 104 30 593 234  

Total Assets        45 634 223 45 355 447  

Equity and Liabilities   

Equity

Reserves        13 810 189 13 873 240

Accumulated surplus        18 331 562 18 653 123  

        32 141 751 32 526 363  

Liabilities   

Non-Current Liabilities

Grants related to assets 11            143 042 530 991  

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 10 6 985 256 5 917 087

Deferred income 11 6 364 174 6 381 006

        13 349 430 12 298 093  

Total Liabilities        13 492 472 12 829 084  

Total Equity and Liabilities        45 634 223 45 355 447  
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income

                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Figures in Pula Note 2019 2018  

Revenue 12 2 418 955 5 532 319

Grant income 13       21 351 200 19 752 588  

Gross profit  23 770 155 25 284 907

Other operating income 14 694 145 866 191

Other operating gains 15 134 818 (117 182)

Other operating expenses  (26 122 295) (25 788 761)

Operating (deficit)/ surplus 16 (1 523 177) 245 155

Finance income 18         1 138 564 768 479  

(Deficit)/ surplus for the year  (384 613) 1 013 634

Other comprehensive income:   

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Deficits on property revaluation  

                         - (238 927)  

Other comprehensive income for the year net of taxation                         - (238 927)  

Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year          (384 613) 774 707  
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 Revaluation Capital grant Total Accumulated Total funds

Figures in Pula reserve reserve reserves surplus and reserves 

Balance at 01 April 2017    11 968 456 2 206 761 14 175 217 17 576 439 31 751 656

Profit for the year - - - 1 013 634 1 013 634

Other comprehensive income       (238 927) - (238 927) - (238 927)

 Total comprehensive income for the year (238 927) - (238 927) 1 013 634 774 707

Transfer to accumulated surplus                     - (63 050) (63 050) 63 050 -

Balance at 01 April 2018    11 729 529 2 143 711 13 873 240 18 653 125 32 526 365

Loss for the year - - - (384 613) (384 613)

Total comprehensive Loss for the year - - - (384 613) (384 613)

                                                                                                                         

Transfer to accumulated surplus                     - (63 050) (63 050) 63 050 -

Total contributions by and distributions 

to owners of company recognised 

directly in equity - (63 050) (63 050) 63 050 -

                                                                                       

Balance at 31 March 2019    11 729 529 2 080 660 13 810 189 18 331 562 32 141 751

Note

The Institute’s capital grant is made up of the value of building and land determined at the time of establishment of the 

Institute in 1995. These grants did not carry any terms of repayment and ownership vests with the Institute until such time 

as decided by the Government. Subsequently grants received for purchase of capital assets have been disclosed under 

Grants related to assets/ Deferred Income.
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Statement of Cash Flows

                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Figures in Pula Note 2019 2018  

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 19 665 225 1 373 650

Finance income          1 138 564 768 479 

Net cash from operating activities          1 803 789 2 142 129 

Cash flows from investing activities

   

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4 (165 633) (98 999)

Sale of property, plant and equipment 4 4 158 45 800

Net cash utilised to acquire financial assets  (1 124 764) (4 996 778)

Increase in project work in progress               67 548 - 

Net cash from investing activities       (1 218 691) (5 049 977) 

Cash flows from financing activities

   

Capital grants received during the year             148 800 1 747 412 

Total cash and cash equivalents movement for the year             733 898 (1 160 436)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year          5 794 976 6 955 412

Total cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 9         6 528 874 5 794 976 
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1.    Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the measurement of certain 

property, plant and equipment at fair value, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are 

presented in Botswana Pula.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period, except for the changes set out in note 2.

1.1   Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 

the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and 

the application of judgement is used in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these 

estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. 

The entity uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based 

on the entity’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting 

period.

Fair value estimation

Certain assets and liabilities of the group are either measured at fair value or disclosure is made of their fair values. 

Observable market data is used as inputs to the extent that it is available

Impairment testing

The entity reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the 

carrying amount may not be recoverable. When such indicators exist, management determine the recoverable 

amount by performing value in use and fair value calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and 

assumptions. When it is not possible to determine the recoverable amount for an individual asset, management assesses 

the recoverable amount for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The estimates of useful lives as translated into depreciation rates are detailed in property, and equipment policy on 

the financial statements. These rates and residual lives of the assets are reviewed annually taking cognisance of the 

forecasted commercial and economic realities and through benchmarking of accounting treatments in the industry.

Provisions

Provisions are raised and management determines an estimate based on the information available.
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1.2   Property, plant and equipment

The cost of an item of property and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

•  it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Institute; and

•  The cost of the item can be measured reliably. Property and equipment is initially measured at cost.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property and equipment and costs incurred 

subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an 

item of property and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any estimated losses except for 

motor vehicles, land and buildings which are carried at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation 

less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment loss. Any revaluation surplus 

is recognised in other comprehensive income and credited to the revaluation reserve in equity. To the extend that 

any revaluation decrease or impairment loss has previously been recognised in profit and loss, a revaluation increase 

is credited to profit and loss with the remaining part of the increase recognised in other comprehensive income. 

Downward revaluations of land are recognised upon appraisal or impairment testing, with the decrease being charged 

to other comprehensive income to the extent of any revaluation surplus in equity relating to this asset and any remaining 

decrease recognised in profit or loss.

 The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property and equipment is transferred directly to retained 

earnings when the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their 

estimated residual value.

 The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property and equipment is transferred directly to retained 

earnings when the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their 

estimated residual value.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows

Item Depreciation method Average useful life

Land Straight line 99 years

Leasehold property Straight line 40 years

Motor vehicles Straight line 4 years

Household Furniture Straight line 5 years

Furniture and fixtures Straight line 10 years

Office equipment Straight line 5 years

IT equipment Straight line 4 years

Library books Straight line 2 years
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1.2   Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting 

period. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting 

estimate.

The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of 

another asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property and equipment is included in profit or loss when 

the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property and equipment is 

determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.3   Financial instruments

Financial instruments held by the institute are classified in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

 Broadly, the classification possibilities, which are adopted by the institute ,as applicable, are as follows: Financial assets 

which are debt instruments:

 

•  Amortised cost. (This category applies only when the contractual terms of the instrument give rise, on specified 

dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal, and where the instrument is 

held under a business model whose objective is met by holding the instrument to collect contractual cash flows); 

or

Derivatives which are not part of a hedging relationship:

•  Mandatorily at fair value through surplus or deficit.

Financial liabilities:

•  Amortised cost; or

Note 21 Financial instruments and risk management presents the financial instruments held by the institute based on their 

specific classifications.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular 

way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame 

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The specific accounting policies for the classification, recognition and measurement of each type of financial instrument 

held by the institute are presented below:

Trade and other receivables

Classification

Trade and other receivables, excluding, when applicable, VAT and prepayments, are classified as financial assets 

subsequently measured at amortised cost (note 8).

Botswana Institute for Development Policy Analysis 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Accounting Policies (continued)



BIDPA
Annual Report 201937  

Classification  (continued)

They have been classified in this manner because their contractual terms give rise, on specified dates to cash flows that 

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding, and the institute’s business model is to collect 

the contractual cash flows on trade and other receivables.

Recognition and measurement

Trade and other receivables are recognised when the institute becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

receivables. They are measured, at initial recognition, at fair value plus transaction costs, if any.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The  amortised  cost  is  the  amount  recognised  on  the  receivable  initially,  minus  principal  repayments,  plus 

cumulative amortisation (interest) using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount and 

the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance.

Trade and other payables 

Classification

Trade and other payables (note 10), excluding VAT and amounts received in advance, are classified as financial liabilities 

subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Recognition and measurement

They are recognised when the institute becomes a party to the contractual provisions, and are measured, at initial 

recognition, at fair value plus transaction costs, if any.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating 

interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 

cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest 

rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where 

appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

If trade and other payables contain a significant financing component, and the effective interest method results in the 

recognition of interest expense, then it is included in surplus or deficit in finance costs.

Trade and other payables expose the institute to liquidity risk and possibly to interest rate risk.  Refer to note 21 for details 

of risk exposure and management thereof.

Derecognition

Refer to the “derecognition” section of the accounting policy for the policies and processes related to derecognition.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at carrying amount which is deemed to be fair value.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Institute derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or 

when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. 

If the Institute neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the 

transferred asset, the Institute recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may 

have to pay. If the Institute retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, 

the Institute continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds 

received.

Financial liabilities

The Institute derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Institute obligations are discharged, cancelled or 

they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration 

paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

1.4   Tax

 

Current tax assets and liabilities

The Institute is exempt from paying income tax as per the requirements of the Income Tax Act.

Tax expenses

The Institute is exempt from paying income tax as per the Income Tax Act (Cap 52: 01).

1.5   Impairment of assets

 The Institute assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. 

If any such indication exists, the Institute estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the Institute also:

• tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet available for use for impairment 

annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed 

during the annual period and at the same time every period.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. 

If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.
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1.5   Impairment of assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value 

in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its 

recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately 

in surplus or deficit. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating units if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying 

amount of the units. The impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the unit in the 

following order:

• first, to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit and

• then, to the other assets of the unit, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior 

periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the 

recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not 

exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset 

in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than 

goodwill is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated 

as a revaluation increase.

 

1.6   Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid 

vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the 

period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that 

increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of surplus sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or 

constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution 

plans where the institute’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement 

benefit plan.
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Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans the cost of providing the benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial 

valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan. Consideration is given 

to any event that could impact the funds up to the end of the reporting period where the

interim valuation is performed at an earlier date.

Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and are otherwise 

amortised on a straight line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become vested.

To the extent that, at the beginning of the financial year, any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or loss exceeds ten 

percent of the greater of the present value of the projected benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets (the 

corridor), that portion is recognised in surplus or deficit over the expected average remaining service lives of participating 

employees. Actuarial gains or losses within the corridor are not recognised.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the year in which they arise, in other comprehensive income.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan is recognised when the institute is demonstrably 

committed to curtailment or settlement.

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined 

benefit obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value. In all 

other respects, the asset is treated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined 

benefit plan is presented as the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement.

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit 

obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service costs, and reduces by 

the fair value of plan assets.

Any asset is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs, plus the present value of available refunds 

and reduction in future contributions to the plan.

 

1.7   Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:

•  the Institute has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 

obligation; and

•  a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation. 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note .
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1.8  Government subvention

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:

• the institute will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and

• the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs that 

they are intended to compensate.

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the 

purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related costs is recognised as income of the 

period in which it becomes receivable.

Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are presented in the statement of 

financial position by setting up the grant as deferred income or by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying 

amount of the asset.

Grants related to income are presented as a credit in the profit or loss (separately).

Repayment of a grant related to income is applied first against any un-amortised deferred credit set up in respect of 

the grant. To the extent that the repayment exceeds any such deferred credit, or where no deferred credit exists, the 

repayment is recognised immediately as an expense.

Repayment of a grant related to an asset is recorded by increasing the carrying amount of the asset or reducing the 

deferred income balance by the amount repayable. The cumulative additional depreciation that would have been 

recognised to date as an expense in the absence of the grant is recognised immediately as an expense.

1.9   Revenue

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated 

with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting 

period. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

• it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Institute;

• the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably;

 and

• the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue shall be 

recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts 

receivable for services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and value added tax.
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1.10  Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Pula, by applying to the foreign currency amount the 

spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

At the end of the reporting period:

• foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;

• non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using 

the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and

• non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 

rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from 

those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous annual financial statements 

are recognised in surplus or deficit in the period in which they arise.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised to other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,  

any  exchange  component  of  that  gain  or  loss  is  recognised  to  other  comprehensive  income  and accumulated 

in equity. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in surplus or deficit, any exchange component of 

that gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency are recorded in Pula by applying to the foreign currency 

amount the exchange rate between the Pula and the foreign currency at the date of the cash flow.

2.    Changes in accounting policy

The  annual  financial  statements  have  been  prepared  in  accordance  with  International  Financial  Reporting 

Standards on a basis consistent with the prior year except for the adoption of the following new or revised standards.

Application of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the company has applied IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as revised in July 2014) and the related 

consequential amendments to other IFRSs. IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments and introduces new  requirements  

for  1)  the  classification  and  measurement  of  financial  assets  and  financial  liabilities,  2) impairment for financial 

assets and 3) general hedge accounting. Details of these new requirements as well as their impact on the company’s 

financial statements are described below.

The company has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions set out in IFRS 9.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

The date of initial application (i.e. the date on which the company has assessed its existing financial assets and financial 

liabilities in terms of the requirements of IFRS 9) is 01 April 2018. Accordingly, the company has applied the requirements 

of IFRS 9 to instruments that have not been derecognised as at 01 April 2018 and has not applied the requirements 
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to instruments that have already been derecognised as at 01 April 2018. Comparatives in relation to instruments that 

have not been derecognised as at 01 April 2018 have not been restated. Instead, cumulative adjustments to retained 

earnings have been recognised in retained earnings as at 01 April 2018.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at amortised 

cost or fair value on the basis of the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash 

flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Reconciliation of the reclassifications and remeasurements of financial assets as a result of adopting

IFRS9

The following table presents a summary of the financial assets as at 01 April 2018. The table reconciles the movement 

of financial assets from their IAS 39 measurement categories and into their new IFRS 9 measurement categories. “FVPL” 

denotes “fair value through surplus or deficit” and “FVOCI” denotes “fair value through other comprehensive income.

                                                                                                                                                                                                               

 Previous New

 measurement measurement

  category: IFRS 9

  

                                                                                                                                                                                                               

 IAS 39 Amortised Re- measurement Change

   cost  changes -   attributable

   Adjustment to  to:

   equity

                                                                                                                                                     

Previously Loans and receivables:

Trade and other receivables 1 860 470 1 860 470 - No change

Cash and cash equivalents   5 794 976 5 794 976    - No change

   7 655 446 7 655 446    -

Previously Held to maturity:

Money market investments 5 612 085 5 612 085 - No change

Fixed deposits   16 943 545 16 943 545    - No change

   22 555 630 22 555 630    -

   30 211 076 30 211 076    -

Botswana Institute for Development Policy Analysis 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Accounting Policies (continued)



44 BIDPA
Annual Report 2019

Botswana Institute for Development Policy Analysis 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

3.    New Standards and Interpretations

3.1  Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the Institute has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the 

current financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification and measurements of financial assets. 

IFRS 9 was subsequently amended in October 2010 to include requirements for the classification and measurement of 

financial liabilities and for derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge 

accounting. Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to include a)impairment requirements for 

financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and measurement requirements by introducing a “fair 

value through other comprehensive income” (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Key requirements of IFRS 9:

•  All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 

Measurement are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt 

investments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and 

that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the outstanding principal 

are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent reporting periods. Debt instruments that 

are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and 

selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on outstanding principal, are measured at FVTOCI. 

All other debt and equity investments are measured at fair value at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In 

addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value 

of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income with only dividend income 

generally recognised in surplus or deficit.

•  With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through surplus or deficit, IFRS 

9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in 

the credit risk of the liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effect of 

the changes of the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting 

mismatch in surplus or deficit. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in fair value of a financial liability 

designated as at fair value through surplus or deficit is presented in surplus or deficit.

•  In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an 

incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected 

credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk 

since initial recognition. It is therefore no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses 

are recognised.
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•  The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms 

currently available in IAS 39. Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible 

for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the 

types of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness 

test has been replaced with the principal of an “economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment of hedge 

effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management 

activities have also been introduced.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2018.

The Institute has adopted the standard for the first time in the 2019 annual financial statements. 

The impact of the standard is not material.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction contracts; IAS 18 Revenue; IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes; IFRIC 15 

Agreements for the construction of Real Estate; IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC

31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to 

customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those 

goods or services. An entity recognises revenue in accordance with that core principle by applying the following steps:

•       Identify the contract(s) with a customer

•       Identify the performance obligations in the contract

•       Determine the transaction price

•       Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

• Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation. 

IFRS 15 also includes extensive new disclosure requirements.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2018.

The Institute has adopted the standard for the first time in the 2019 annual financial statements.

The impact of the standard is not material. Information on revenue from contracts is included on note 12
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3.2  Standards and interpretations not yet effective

The Institute has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and 

are mandatory for the Institute’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2019 or later periods:

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases is a new standard which replaces IAS 17 Leases, and introduces a single lessee accounting model. The 

main changes arising from the issue of IFRS 16 which are likely to impact the Institute are as follows:

Institute as lessee:

• Lessees are required to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except short term leases or 

leases where the underlying asset has a low value, which are expensed on a straight line or other systematic basis.

• The cost of the right-of-use asset includes, where appropriate, the initial amount of the lease liability; lease 

payments made prior to commencement of the lease less incentives received; initial direct costs of the lessee; 

and an estimate for any provision for dismantling, restoration and removal related to the underlying asset.

• The  lease  liability  takes  into  consideration,  where  appropriate,  fixed  and  variable  lease  payments; residual 

value guarantees to be made by the lessee; exercise price of purchase options; and payments of penalties for 

terminating the lease.

• The  right-of-use  asset  is  subsequently  measured  on  the  cost  model  at  cost  less  accumulated depreciation and 

impairment and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. However, right- of-use assets are measured 

at fair value when they meet the definition of investment property and all other investment property is accounted for 

on the fair value model. If a right-of-use asset relates to a class of property, plant and equipment which is measured 

on the revaluation model, then that right-of-use asset may be measured on the revaluation model.

•  The lease liability is subsequently increased by interest, reduced by lease payments and re-measured for

 reassessments or modifications.

•  Re-measurements of lease liabilities are affected against right-of-use assets, unless the assets have

 been reduced to nil, in which case further adjustments are recognised in surplus or deficit.

•  The lease liability is re-measured by discounting revised payments at a revised rate when there is a

 change in the lease term or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

•  The lease liability is re-measured by discounting revised lease payments at the original discount rate

 when there is a change in the amounts expected to be paid in a residual value guarantee or when there

 is a change in future payments because of a change in index or rate used to determine those payments.

•  Certain lease modifications are accounted for as separate leases. When lease modifications which

 decrease the scope of the lease are not required to be accounted for as separate leases, then the lessee

 re-measures the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right of lease asset to reflect the

 full or partial termination of the lease. Any gain or loss relating to the full or partial termination of the lease

 is  recognised  in  surplus  or  deficit.  For  all  other  lease  modifications  which  are  not  required  to  be

 accounted for as separate leases, the lessee re-measures the lease liability by making a corresponding

 adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

•  Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities should be presented separately from other assets and liabilities. If

 not, then the line item in which they are included must be disclosed. This does not apply to right-of-use

 assets meeting the definition of investment property which must be presented within investment property.

 IFRS 16 contains different disclosure requirements compared to IAS 17 leases.
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Institute as lessor:

• Accounting for leases by lessors remains similar to the provisions of IAS 17 in that leases are classified as either 

finance leases or operating leases. Lease classification is reassessed only if there has been a modification.

•  A modification is required to be accounted for as a separate lease if it both increases the scope of the lease by 

adding the right to use one or more underlying assets; and the increase in consideration is commensurate to the 

stand alone price of the increase in scope.

• If a finance lease is modified, and the modification would not qualify as a separate lease, but the lease would 

have been an operating lease if the modification was in effect from inception, then the modification is accounted 

for as a separate lease. In addition, the carrying amount of the underlying asset shall be measured as the net 

investment in the lease immediately before the effective date of the modification. IFRS 9 is applied to all other 

modifications not required to be treated as a separate lease.

• Modifications to operating leases are required to be accounted for as new leases from the effective date of the 

modification. Changes have also been made to the disclosure requirements of leases in the lessor’s financial statements.

Sale and leaseback transactions:

• In the event of a sale and leaseback transaction, the requirements of IFRS 15 are applied to consider whether a 

performance obligation is satisfied to determine whether the transfer of the asset is accounted for as the sale of an asset.

• If the transfer meets the requirements to be recognised as a sale, the seller-lessee must measure the new right-of-

use asset at the proportion of the previous carrying amount of the asset that relates to the right-of-use retained. The 

buyer-lessor accounts for the purchase by applying applicable standards and for the lease by applying IFRS 16

•  If the fair value of consideration for the sale is not equal to the fair value of the asset, then IFRS 16 requires 

adjustments to be made to the sale proceeds. When the transfer of the asset is not a sale, then the seller-lessee 

continues to recognise the transferred asset and recognises a financial liability equal to the transfer proceeds. The 

buyer-lessor recognises a financial asset equal to the transfer proceeds.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2019.

The Institute expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2020 annual financial statements. 

The impact of this standard is currently being assessed.

4.  Property, plant and equipment

                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

                                                                2019   2018                                

 Cost Accumulated  Carrying Accumulated Carrying Cost

                                                                               depreciation value depreciation value                     

Land and buildings 12 675 000 (233 300)    12 441 700 12 675 000 - 12 675 000

Furniture and fixtures 747 466 (618 650) 128 816 654 229 (597 127) 57 102

Motor vehicles 1 387 878 (346 653) 1 041 225 1 387 878 - 1 387 878

Office equipment 620 014 (512 897) 107 117 599 711 (422 691) 177 020

Computer software 987 397 (674 016) 313 381 944 866 (488 497) 456 369

Library books         622 170 (620 290) 1 880 620 274 (611 430) 8 844 

Total    17 039 925 (3 005 806)    14 034 119 16 881 958 (2 119 745)    14 762 213 
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Reconciliation of property, 

plant and equipment - 2019

   Opening Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

   balance

Buildings  12 675 000 - - (233 300) 12 441 700

Furniture and fixtures  57 102 93 237 - (21 523) 128 816

Motor vehicles  1 387 878 - - (346 653) 1 041 225

Office equipment  177 020 28 265 (4 158) (94 010) 107 117

Computer software  456 369 42 531 - (185 519) 313 381

Library books              8 844 1 600 - (8 564) 1 880

     14 762 213 165 633 (4 158) (889 569) 14 034 119

Reconciliation of property, 

plant and equipment - 2018

  Opening Additions Disposals Revaluation   Depreciation Total

  balance

Buildings 13 674 749 - - (715 670) (284 079)    12 675 000

Furniture and fixtures 84 673 4 723 (5 311) - (26 983) 57 102

Motor vehicles 1 341 367 - (16 464) 476 743 (413 768) 1 387 878

Office equipment 234 285 30 257 - - (87 522) 177 020

Computer software 583 991 61 659 (2 019) - (187 262) 456 369

Library books            19 857 2 360 - - (13 373) 8 844 

     15 938 922 98 999 (23 794) (238 927) (1 012 987)    14 762 213 

Property, plant and equipment encumbered as security

Land and building consist of a certain piece of land, being portion 134 of the Farm Forest Hill No. 9-KO measuring

1554 square meters held under a title deed MA56/2003 dated 01 March 2003 for a 99 year period commencing 01

March 2003.

The effective date of the revaluations of Land and Buildings was 14 May 2018. Revaluations were performed by an 

independent valuer, Mr David Watson (Bsc Hons, MRICS), of Knight Frank. The land and Buildings were valued at P 12 675 

000 representing the open market value arrived at using discounted cash flow method. The capitalization rate used was 

9%. Inspection of the properties were conducted during the valuation.
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Figures in Pula Note 2019 2018  

5.  Other financial assets - as per IFRS 9

Other financial assets are presented at amortised cost, which is net 

of loss allowance, as follows:

Stanlib Investment management services  5 799 627 -

The fair value of the investments in money market funds are based on the valuation 

of units provided by the fund manager. The fund manager’s valuation is based on 

market value of the underlying assets of each fund.

Fixed Deposits    

Bank Gaborone Limited                                                                                                           8 952 141                      - 

African Banking Corporation of Botswana Limited  5 189 512                      - 

Escponent Asset Management Company                                                                                      3 739 114                      -   

        23 680 394 - 

Exposure to credit risk

Other financial assets inherently exposes the Institute to credit risk, being the risk that the Institute will incur financial loss if 

counterparties fail to make payments as they fall due.

Other financial assets are subject to the impairment provisions of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, which requires a loss allowance 

to be recognised for all exposures to credit risk. The loss allowance for Other financial assets is calculated based on twelve 

month expected losses if the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition. In cases where the credit risk 

has increased significantly since initial recognition, the loss allowance is calculated based on lifetime expected credit losses. 

The loss allowance is updated to either twelve month or lifetime expected credit losses at each reporting date based on 

changes in the credit risk since initial recognition.

In determining the amount of expected credit losses, the Institute has taken into account any historic default experience, the 

financial positions of the counterparties as well as the future prospects in the industries in which the counterparties operate 

or are employed. This information has been obtained from the counterparties themselves, as well as from economic reports, 

financial analyst reports and various external sources of actual and forecast data and is applied to estimate a probability of 

default occurring as well as estimating the loss upon default.

The estimation techniques explained have been applied for the first time in the current financial period, which is the first time 

the Institute has applied IFRS 9. The assessed credit loss has been determined to be nil for the current and prior period.
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Figures in Pula Note 2019 2018  

6.     Financial assets - Comparative information as per IAS 39

Current assets

Money market investments  - 5 612 085

Fixed deposits                          - 16 943 545 

                         - 22 555 630 

Financial assets were classified as loans and receivables

7.  Project work in progress

Project revenue is recognised according to the stage of completion at the end of the reporting period. The institute 

measures the percentage of completion using the efforts-expended method.

Unbilled revenue  49 423 116 971

8. Trade and other receivables

Financial instruments:

Trade receivables  1 037 473 2 047 463

Loss allowance  (85 085) (288 650)

Trade receivables at amortised cost  952 388 1 758 813

Deposits  8 000 8 000

Other receivable  257 902 93 657

Non-financial instruments:

Value added tax  60 096 - 

Employee costs in advance  34 948 30 436

Prepayments  28 079 234 751

Total trade and other receivables  1 341 413 2 125 657

Categorisation of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are categorised as follows in accordance with IFRS 9: Financial Instruments:

At amortised cost  1 218 290 1 860 470

Non-financial instruments              123 123 265 187

           1 341 413 2 125 657
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8.   Trade and other receivables (continued) 

Exposure to credit risk

Trade receivables inherently expose the Institute to credit risk, being the risk that the Institute will incur financial loss if 

customers fail to make payments as they fall due.

A loss allowance is recognised for all trade receivables, in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, and is monitored 

at the end of each reporting period. In addition to the loss allowance, trade receivables are written off when  there  is  

no  reasonable  expectation  of  recovery,  for  example,  when  a  debtor  has  been  placed  under liquidation. Trade 

receivables which have been written off are not subject to enforcement activities.

The Institute measures the loss allowance for trade receivables by applying the simplified approach which is prescribed 

by IFRS 9. In accordance with this approach, the loss allowance on trade receivables is determined as the lifetime 

expected credit losses on trade receivables. These lifetime expected credit losses are estimated using a provision matrix, 

which is presented below. The provision matrix has been developed by making use of past default experience of 

debtors but also incorporates forward looking information and general economic conditions of the industry as at the 

reporting date.

The estimation techniques explained have been applied for the first time in the current financial period, as a result of the 

adoption of IFRS 9. Trade receivables were previously impaired only when there was objective evidence that the asset 

was impaired. The impairment was calculated as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value 

of the expected future cash flows.

The Institute’s historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different loss patterns for different customer 

segments. Included in the trade and other receivables are receivables owed by state owned entities and non governmental 

organisations which have been collected subsequent to the year end.   There has not been any significant increase in 

credit risk or risk of default on these balances and based on probability of default, loss given default, the expected credit 

loss is determined at Nil for both the current and previous year.The provision for credit losses is therefore based on past due 

status without disaggregating into further risk profiles. The loss allowance provision is determined as follows:

 2019 2019 2018 2018

 Estimated  Loss Estimated Loss

 gross allowance gross allowance

 carrying  (Lifetime  carrying (Lifetime

 default expected amount at expected  

  credit loss) default credit loss)      

Expected credit loss rate:                                                                                                                  

Not past due: 0% (2018: 0%) 529 266 - 1 621 032 -

>91 days past due:16% (2018: 68%)                 508 207 85 085 426 431 288 650 

Total       1 037 473 85 085 2 047 463 288 650 

Botswana Institute for Development Policy Analysis 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)



52 BIDPA
Annual Report 2019

8. Trade and other receivables (continued) 

Reconciliation of loss allowances

The following table shows the movement in the loss allowance (lifetime expected credit losses) for trade and other 

receivables:

                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

 

Opening balance in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments:   (288 650) -

Recognition and Measurement 

 Adjustments upon application of IFRS 9                                                                                              -                      -

Opening balance in accordance with IFRS 9                                                                       (288 650)  - 

Provisions reversed on settled trade receivables                                                                       105 000  - 

Provisions written off during the year                                                                                                    98 565   -

Closing balance                                                                                                                            (85 085) -

Credit risk disclosures for comparatives under IAS 39

The following sections provide comparative information for trade and other receivables which have not been restated. 

The information is provided in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Credit quality of trade and other receivables

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed by 

reference to external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty default rates.

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired

Trade and other receivables which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 31

March 2018, P 137 781  were past due but not impaired.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

91 days and over                                                                                                                                               137 781

Trade and other receivables impaired

As of 31 March 2018, trade and other receivables of P 288 650  were impaired and provided for. The amount of the 

provision was P 288 650 as of 31 March 2018 .

The ageing of these loans is as follows:

Over 6 months                                                                                                                                                   288 650

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

Provision for impairment                                                                                                                                    288 650

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of trade and other receivable 

mentioned above. The Institute does not hold any collateral as security.

Fair value of trade and other receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables approximates their carrying amounts.
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Figures in Pula 2019 2019 2018

9.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

Cash on hand 4 000 4 000

Bank balances      6 524 874 5 790 976

      6 528 874 5 794 976

Credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand  

Bank balances include amount of P 167 666 (2018: P 124 861) held on behalf of 

Vision 2036. The project is currently administered by Botswana Institute for

Development Policy Analysis.

10. Trade and other payables

Financial instruments: 

Trade payables 460 717 209 451

Vision 2036 funds 167 666 124 861

Other payables 714 566 228 937

Non-financial instruments:

Accrued leave pay 800 400 851 425

Gratuity accrual 4 841 907 4 497 239

Value added tax                     - 5 174 

      6 985 256 5 917 087 

Fair value of trade and other payables  

The fair value of trade and other payables approximates their carrying amounts.  

11.  Grants related to assets and Deferred income  

Non-current liabilities 143 042 530 991

Current liabilities      6 364 174 6 381 006 

      6 507 216 6 911 997 

The Institute receives grants from the Government based on the budget approved by the Board of Trustees and the 

Ministry of Finance and Economic Development.

Grants related to assets 

Balance at the beginning of the year 530 991 1 291 212

Received during the year 165 632 98 998

Released to income statement      (553 581) (859 219) 

         143 042 530 991 
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11. Grants related to assets and Deferred income (continued) 

    

Figures in Pula 2019 2019 2018 

Deferred Income 

Balance at the beginning of the year  6 381 006 4 732 593

Received during the year  148 800 1 747 412

Transfer to capital grant          (165 632) (98 999) 

         6 364 174 6 381 006 

Deferred income represent amounts which have not been utilised received by the Institute towards specific projects 

including renovations of the building.

12.  Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers 

Income earned from research projects         2 418 955 5 532 319

13.  Grant income   

Government of Botswana       21 351 200 19 752 588

14.  Other operating income   

Other sundry income  140 563 7 027

Amortisation of capital grants            553 582 859 164

            694 145 866 191

15.  Other operating gains (losses)   

Gains on disposals

Property, plant and equipment 4                       - 22 006

Foreign exchange gains (losses)

Net foreign exchange gains (losses)            134 818 (139 188)

Total other operating gains (losses)            134 818 (117 182)

16.  Operating surplus   

Operating (deficit)/ surplus for the year is stated after charging the following, amongst others:

Auditor’s remuneration - external

Audit fees             106 677 100 639

Auditor’s remuneration - internal            140 178 132 120

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment            889 569 1 012 987

Other

Project costs             479 095 1 707 785
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16.  Operating surplus (continued) 

    

Figures in Pula 2019 2019 2018

Expenses by nature

The total general and administrative expenses, maintenance expenses and other 

operating expenses are analysed by nature as follows:

Employee costs  16 851 894 16 905 970

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment  889 569 1 012 987

Other expenses  1 877 738 1 896 342

Training  2 532 634 1 651 236

Conference costs  961 350 503 301

Board expenses  806 382 222 301

Consulting and professional fees  691 109 1 011 197

Telephone and fax  387 421 450 395

Advertising  335 717 184 171

Project costs  479 095 1 707 785

Cleaning costs  309 386 243 076

  26 122 295 25 788 761

17.  Employee costs  

Employee costs

Basic  10 838 647 11 181 985

Medical aid  312 312 286 437

Bonus  203 020 20 196

Pay in lieu leave  594 667 614 531

Gratuity  3 207 878 3 271 233

Scarcity allowances  1 124 857 1 057 528

Recruitment and repatriation  - 21 836

Cellphone allowance  125 510 133 208

Entertainment benefit           445 003 319 016

      16 851 894 16 905 970

18.  Finance income  

Interest income

Investments in financial assets:

Bank and other cash  1 138 564 768 479
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Figures in Pula 2019 2019 2018  

19.  Cash generated from operations  

Profit (loss) before taxation 

Adjustments for:   (384 613) 1 013 634

Depreciation and amortisation  889 569 1 012 987

Gains on disposals of assets  - (22 006)

Finance income  (1 138 564) (768 479)

Work in progress  - 128 600

Amortisation of capital grant  (553 582) (859 164)

Changes in working capital:

Trade and other receivables  784 244 953 478

Trade and other payables        1 068 171 (85 400) 

           665 225 1 373 650 

20.  Related parties

`Relationships

Entities with significant influence Government of Botswana

Projects controlled by the institute Technical Assistance Project

Independent Board Committee Members Mr C. Moapare

 Ms D. Ramphaleng

 Mr Z. Mmolawa 

 Ms K. Keloneilwe 

 Mr. L. Tlhalerwa 

 Ms M. Molebatsi 

 Ms W. Ramaphoi

Members of key management Dr. T. B. Seleka (Executive Director)

 Prof P. Malope (Senior Research Fellow) 

 Ms. B. N. Siwawa (Finance Manager) 

 Prof. E Kouassi (Senior Research Fellow)

 Mr. J. Seanego (Knowledge Management   

 andDissemination Manager)

 Ms. B Wadikonyana (Human Resource   

 andAdministration Manager)

 The Late Mr L Isaacs (IT Manager)
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Figures in Pula 2019 2019 2018  

Related party balances

Amounts included in Trade receivable (Trade Payable) regarding related parties

Technical Assistance Project  354 341 66 163

Related party transactions

Grant received from related parties including deferred grants

Government of Botswana  (21 500 000)   (21 500 000)

Board transactions

Board sitting fees and expenses  298 919 222 301

Administration fees received from related parties

Technical Assistance Project  (316 376) (276 916)

Key management remuneration

Remuneration paid  4 188 443 5 415 714

Other long term employee benefits        1 035 484 1 067 029  

        5 223 927 6 482 743 
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Categories of financial instruments

Categories of financial assets

2019

 Note Amortised  Total Fair value

  cost

 

 

 

Other financial asset 5 23 680 394 23 680 394 23 680 394

Trade and other receivables 8 1 218 290 1 218 290 1 218 290

Cash and cash equivalents 9          6 528 874 6 528 874 6 528 874

         31 427 558 31 427 558 31 427 558

2018

 Note Amortised  Total Fair value

  cost

 

 

Trade and other receivables 8 1 860 470 1 860 470 1 860 470

Cash and cash equivalents 9        5 794 976 5 794 976 5 794 976

         7 655 446 7 655 446 7 655 446

Categories of financial liabilities

2019

 Note Amortised  Total Fair value

  cost

 

 

Trade and other payables 10        1 342 949 1 342 949 1 342 949

2018

 Note Amortised  Total Fair value

  cost

 

 

 Trade and other payables 10          563 249 563 249 563 249
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Financial risk management

Overview

The Institute is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

•  Credit risk;

•  Liquidity risk; and

•  Market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk).

The board of trustees has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Institute’s risk management 

framework. The board has established the risk committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the 

Institute’s risk management policies. The committee reports quarterly to the board of trustees on its activities.

The Institute’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Institute, to set 

appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems 

are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Institute’s activities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Institute if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 

contractual obligations.

Credit risk for exposures other than those arising on cash and cash equivalents, are managed by making use of credit 

approvals, limits and monitoring. The institute only deals with reputable counterparties with consistent payment histories. 

The exposure to credit risk and the creditworthiness of counterparties is continually monitored.

Credit risk exposure arising on cash and cash equivalents is managed by the entity  through dealing with well- established 

financial institutions with high credit ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

                                                                                                                                                      

           2019  2018                     

 

  Gross  Credit loss Amortised Gross Credit loss Amortised

  carrying  allowance cost carrying allowance cost

       amount   amount                                                

 Loans receivable 5 23 680 394 -   23 680 394 - - -

 Trade and other 

receivables  8 1 303 375 (85 085)    1 218 290 2 149 120  (288 650)    1 860 470

Cash and cash 

equivalents 9 6 528 874 - 6 528 874 5 794 976 - 5 794 976

                                                                                                                                                                             

     31 512 643 (85 085)  31 427 558 7 944 096 (288 650)    7 655 446
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21.  Financial instruments and risk management (continued) 

Liquidity risk

The Institute is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the Institute will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations 

as they become due.

The Institute manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows.

There have been no significant changes in the liquidity risk management policies and processes since the prior reporting 

period.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate 

the risk, are presented in the following table. The cash flows are undiscounted contractual amounts.

2019

  Less than Total Carrying

  1 year  amount

 

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables  1 342 949 1 342 949 1 342 949

Bank overdraft 9           4 438 4 438 4 438

2018

  Less than Total Carrying

  1 year  amount

 

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 10 563 249 563 249 563 249

Bank overdraft 9        103 879 103 879 103 879

Foreign currency risk

The Institute is exposed to foreign currency risk for transactions which are denominated in a currency other than Pula. 

The Institute does not take cover on foreign currency as it regards the Pula as a stable currency. The Institute’s exposure 

to foreign exchange risk, based on notional amounts, is analysed as follows:
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21.  Financial instruments and risk management (continued) 

Exposure in foreign currency amounts

The net carrying amounts, in foreign currency of the above exposure was as follows: 

US Dollar exposure: 

Current assets:

Trade and other receivables  8 365 004 426 237

Cash and cash equivalents  9 1 421 066 895 292

Net US Dollar exposure   1 786 070 1 321 529

British Pound exposure:   

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents  9 - 128 777

Exchange rates   

The following closing exchange rates were applied at reporting date:   

Pula per unit of foreign currency:

US Dollar   10.780 9.550

British Pound   - 13.410

Interest rate risk   

As the Institute has significant interest-bearing assets, the Institute’s income and operating cash flows are substantially 

independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Institute’s interest rate risk arises from deposits in short term financial assets and call accounts with its bankers. The 

Institute analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Since most of the deposits are placed in short term 

maturity assets, the financial administrators negotiate interest rates with the bankers on maturity of these instruments 

before decisions on reinvesting. A quote for the best interest is obtained from financial institutions in the country and 

decisions are then made.

The institute invests with reputable financial institutions and is subject to normal market interest rate risk on its banking 

facilities.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following sensitivity analysis has been prepared using a sensitivity rate which is used when reporting interest rate risk 

internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change 

in interest rates. All other variables remain constant. The sensitivity analysis includes only financial instruments exposed to 

interest rate risk which were recognised at the reporting date. No changes were made to the methods and assumptions 

used in the preparation of the sensitivity analysis compared to the previous reporting period.

                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

             2019 2019 2018 2018 

Increase or decrease in rate      Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 

Impact on profit or loss:    

Financial assets 0.1% (2018: 0.1%)          23 680 23 680 22 556 22 556 
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Figures in Pula Note 2019 2018

Revenue

Income earned from research projects  2 418 955 5 532 319

Grant income 13      21 351 200 19 752 588

Gross income  23 770 155 25 284 907

Other operating income   

Sundry income  140 563 7 027

Amortisation of fixed assets            553 582 859 164

 14           694 145 866 191

Other operating gains (losses)   

Gains on disposal of assets  - 22 006

Foreign exchange gains (losses)  134 818 (139 188)

 15 134 818 (117 182)

Expenses (Refer to page 40)    (26 122 295) (25 788 761)

Operating (loss) profit 16 (1 523 177) 245 155

Finance income 18 1 138 564 768 479

(Loss) profit for the year         (384 613) 1 013 634
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Figures in Pula Note 2019 2018 

Other operating expenses

Advertising  (335 717) (184 171)

Auditors remuneration 16 (106 677) (100 639)

Auditors remuneration - internal audit 16 (140 178) (132 120)

Bad debts  - (288 644)

Bank charges  (42 038) (41 894)

Cleaning  (309 386) (243 076)

Consulting and professional fees  (691 109) (1 011 197)

Legal fees  (59 468) (42 149)

Consumables  (16 940) (42 208)

Depreciation  (889 569) (1 012 987)

Employee costs  (16 851 894) (16 905 970)

Entertainment  (5 000) (10 519)

PJC Project Costs  (479 095) (1 707 785)

Corporate Social Responsibility  (3 971) -

Board expenses  (806 382) (222 301)

Conference costs  (961 350) (503 301)

Insurance  (163 805) (158 159)

IT expenses  (145 948) (106 506)

Motor vehicle expenses  (109 244) (31 979)

Municipal expenses  (263 638) (225 488)

Postage  (6 187) (8 046)

Printing and stationery  (155 931) (119 346)

Promotions  (91 245) (2 050)

Repairs and maintenance  (188 295) (209 503)

Security  (83 457) (74 619)

Staff welfare  (71 186) (56 258)

Subscriptions  (83 213) (164 371)

Telephone and fax  (387 421) (450 395)

Training  (2 532 634) (1 651 236)

Travel - local        (141 317) (81 844) 

   (26 122 295) (25 788 761) 
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